

MAINE STATE LEGISLATURE

The following document is provided by the
LAW AND LEGISLATIVE DIGITAL LIBRARY
at the Maine State Law and Legislative Reference Library
<http://legislature.maine.gov/lawlib>



Reproduced from scanned originals with text recognition applied
(searchable text may contain some errors and/or omissions)

LAWS
OF THE
STATE OF MAINE

AS PASSED BY THE
ONE HUNDRED AND FOURTEENTH LEGISLATURE
FIRST SPECIAL SESSION

August 21, 1989 to August 22, 1989

and

SECOND REGULAR SESSION

January 3, 1990 to April 14, 1990

THE GENERAL EFFECTIVE DATE FOR
NON-EMERGENCY LAWS IS
July 14, 1990

PUBLISHED BY THE REVISOR OF STATUTES
IN ACCORDANCE WITH MAINE REVISED STATUTES ANNOTATED,
TITLE 3, SECTION 163-A, SUBSECTION 4.

J.S. McCarthy Company
Augusta, Maine
1990

PUBLIC LAWS
OF THE
STATE OF MAINE

AS PASSED AT THE
SECOND REGULAR SESSION

of the
ONE HUNDRED AND FOURTEENTH LEGISLATURE

January 3, 1990 to April 14, 1990

Sec. 5. 22 MRSA §1471-B, sub-§5, as amended by PL 1979, c. 731, §19, is further amended to read:

5. Staff. The board ~~may~~ must establish standards for the delegation of its authority to the director and staff. Any person aggrieved by a decision of the director and staff has a right to a review of the decision by the board. The Commissioner of Agriculture, Food and Rural Resources shall provide the board with administrative services of the department, including assistance in the preparation of the board's budget. ~~He~~ The commissioner may require the board to reimburse the department for these services.

Sec. 6. 22 MRSA §1471-B, sub-§8 is enacted to read:

8. Meetings. The board shall periodically meet in various geographic regions of the State. When considering an enforcement action, the board shall attempt to meet in the geographic region where the alleged violation occurred.

Sec. 7. 22 MRSA §1471-H, as enacted by PL 1975, c. 397, §2, is further amended to read:

§1471-H. Inspection

~~For the purpose of carrying out the provisions of this chapter~~ Upon presentation of appropriate credentials, the chairman chair or any member of the board or any authorized employee or consultant of the board may enter upon any public or private premises at reasonable times for the purpose of inspecting any equipment, device or apparatus used in applying pesticides; inspecting storage and disposal areas; inspecting or investigating complaints of injury to persons or land from pesticides; observing the use and application of pesticides; sampling pesticides in use or storage; and sampling pesticide residues on crops, foliage, soil, water or elsewhere in the environment. Upon denial of access to the board or its agents, the board or its agents may seek an appropriate search warrant in a court of competent jurisdiction. Notwithstanding other provisions of this section, a board member or any authorized employee or consultant of the board may enter public or private premises without notification if an emergency exists. The need to take a residue sample in a timely manner constitutes an emergency under this section.

Sec. 8. 22 MRSA §1471-J, as repealed and replaced by PL 1975, c. 770, §§91 and 92, is amended to read:

§1471-J. Penalties

~~Any~~ A person who violates any provision of this chapter or any order, ~~regulation rule~~, decision, certificate or license issued by the board or ~~does~~ commits any act constituting a ground for revocation, except ~~in~~ acts punishable under section 1471-D, subsection 8, paragraphs A and H ~~shall be punished by a fine of not more than \$500 for the first offense, and not less than \$500 for~~

~~each subsequent offense, commits a civil violation subject to the penalties established in Title 7, section 616-A. Each day that any person so operates shall be considered a separate offense.~~

Sec. 9. 22 MRSA §1471-M, sub-§§5 and 6 are enacted to read:

5. Disclosure of rights. When issuing a license, the board shall provide to each licensee a written statement outlining the enforcement process and the process of negotiating agreements in lieu of court action that may occur in the event enforcement action is pursued. The Department of the Attorney General and the Department of Agriculture, Food and Rural Resources shall assist the board in developing an appropriate written statement. The board shall make this information available to all existing licensees within 30 days of the effective date of this section.

6. Notification. Whenever the board or its staff investigates a complaint alleging a violation of rules adopted pursuant to Title 7, section 606, subsection 2, paragraph G, the staff shall make all reasonable efforts to notify the alleged violator, if identity is known, prior to collecting samples.

Sec. 10. 22 MRSA §1471-W, sub-§4, as enacted by PL 1989, c. 93, §2, is repealed.

See title page for effective date.

CHAPTER 842

S.P. 926 - L.D. 2337

An Act Relating to Health Maintenance Organizations

Be it enacted by the People of the State of Maine as follows:

Sec. 1. 24-A MRSA §4202, sub-§§1-A and 1-B are enacted to read:

1-A. Capitated basis. "Capitated basis" means fixed per member per month payment or percentage of premium payment pursuant to which the provider assumes the full risk for the cost of contracted services without regard to the type, value or frequency of services provided. For purposes of this definition, capitated basis includes the cost associated with operating staff model facilities.

1-B. Carrier. "Carrier" means a health maintenance organization, an insurer, a nonprofit hospital and medical service corporation, or other entity responsible for the payment of benefits or provision of services under a group contract.

Sec. 2. 24-A MRSA §4202, sub-§6, as enacted by PL 1975, c. 503, is repealed.

Sec. 3. 24-A MRSA §4202, sub-§§7-A and 11 are enacted to read:

7-A. Participating provider. “Participating provider” means a provider as defined in subsection 9 that, under an express or implied contract with the health maintenance organization, has agreed to provide health care services to enrollees with an expectation of receiving payment, other than copayment, directly or indirectly from the health maintenance organization.

11. Uncovered expenditures. “Uncovered expenditures” means the costs to the health maintenance organization for health care services that are the obligation of the health maintenance organization for which an enrollee may also be liable.

Sec. 4. 24-A MRSA §4203, sub-§3, ¶II, as enacted by PL 1975, c. 503, is repealed and the following enacted in its place:

I. A financial feasibility plan that includes detailed enrollment projections, the methodology for determining premium rates to be charged during the first 12 months of operations certified by an actuary or other qualified person, a projection of balance sheets, cash flow statements showing any capital expenditures, purchase and sale of investments and deposits with the State, income and expense statements anticipated from the start of operations until the organization has had net income for at least one year and a statement of the sources of working capital and any other sources of funding;

Sec. 5. 24-A MRSA §4203, sub-§3, ¶IM, as enacted by PL 1975, c. 503, is repealed and the following enacted in its place:

M. A description of the proposed quality assurance program, including the formal organization structure, methods for developing criteria, procedures for comprehensive evaluation of the quality of care rendered to enrollees, and processes to initiate corrective action and reevaluation when deficiencies in provider or organizational performance are identified;

Sec. 6. 24-A MRSA §4203, sub-§3, ¶IQ, as enacted by PL 1975, c. 503, is amended to read:

Q. Such other information as the superintendent may reasonably require to make the determinations required in section 4204;

Sec. 7. 24-A MRSA §4203, sub-§3, ¶IR and S are enacted to read:

R. A description of procedures to be implemented to meet the protection against insolvency requirements in section 4204, subsection 2-A, paragraph D and section 4204-A; and

S. A list of the names and addresses of all physicians and facilities with which the health maintenance organization has or will have agreements.

Sec. 8. 24-A MRSA §4204, sub-§2-A, ¶IB, as enacted by PL 1981, c. 501, §51, is amended to read:

B. If the Commissioner of Human Services has determined that a certificate of need is not required, the commissioner makes a determination and provides a certification to the superintendent ~~whether~~ that the following requirements have been met.

~~(1) The applicant has demonstrated the willingness and potential ability to assure that the health care services will be provided in a manner to assure both availability and accessibility of adequate personnel and facilities and in a manner enhancing availability, accessibility and continuity of service.~~

~~(2) The applicant has arrangements, established in accordance with regulations promulgated by the Commissioner of Human Services with the advice of the Maine Health Systems Agency or any successor agency, for an ongoing quality of health care assurance program concerning health care processes and outcomes.~~

~~(3) The applicant has a procedure, established in accordance with regulations of the Commissioner of Human Services, to develop, compile, evaluate and report statistics relating to the cost of its operations, the pattern of utilization of its services and such other matters as may be reasonably required by the commissioner.~~

(4) The health maintenance organization must establish and maintain procedures to ensure that the health care services provided to enrollees are rendered under reasonable standards of quality of care consistent with prevailing professionally recognized standards of medical practice. These procedures must include mechanisms to ensure availability, accessibility and continuity of care.

(5) The health maintenance organization must have an ongoing internal quality assurance program to monitor and evaluate its health care services including primary and specialist physician services, ancillary and preventive health care services across all institutional and noninstitutional settings. The program must include, at a minimum, the following:

(a) A written statement of goals and objectives that emphasizes improved

health outcomes in evaluating the quality of care rendered to enrollees;

(b) A written quality assurance plan that describes the following:

(i) The health maintenance organization's scope and purpose in quality assurance;

(ii) The organizational structure responsible for quality assurance activities;

(iii) Contractual arrangements, in appropriate instances, for delegation of quality assurance activities;

(iv) Confidentiality policies and procedures;

(v) A system of ongoing evaluation activities;

(vi) A system of focused evaluation activities;

(vii) A system for reviewing and evaluating provider credentials for acceptance and performing peer review activities; and

(viii) Duties and responsibilities of the designated physician supervising the quality assurance activities;

(c) A written statement describing the system of ongoing quality assurance activities including:

(i) Problem assessment, identification, selection and study;

(ii) Corrective action, monitoring evaluation and reassessment; and

(iii) Interpretation and analysis of patterns of care rendered to individual patients by individual providers;

(d) A written statement describing the system of focused quality assurance activities based on representative samples of the enrolled population that identifies the method of topic selection, study, data collection, analysis, interpretation and report format; and

(e) Written plans for taking appropriate corrective action whenever, as determined by the quality assurance program, inappropriate or substandard services have been provided or services that should have been furnished have not been provided.

(6) The health maintenance organization shall record proceedings of formal quality assurance program activities and maintain documentation in a confidential manner. Quality assurance program minutes must be available to the Commissioner of Human Services.

(7) The health maintenance organization shall ensure the use and maintenance of an adequate patient record system that facilitates documentation and retrieval of clinical information to permit evaluation by the health maintenance organization of the continuity and coordination of patient care and the assessment the quality of health and medical care provided to enrollees.

(8) Enrollee clinical records must be available to the Commissioner of Human Services or an authorized designee for examination and review to ascertain compliance with this section, or as considered necessary by the Commissioner of Human Services.

(9) The organization must establish a mechanism for periodic reporting of quality assurance program activities to the governing body, providers and appropriate organization staff.

The Commissioner of Human Services shall make the certification required by this paragraph within 60 days of the date of the written decision that a certificate of need was not required. If the commissioner certifies that the health maintenance organization does not meet all of the requirements of this paragraph, ~~he~~ the commissioner shall specify in what respects ~~it~~ the health maintenance organization is deficient.

Sec. 9. 24-A MRSA §4204, sub-§2-A, ¶D, as repealed and replaced by PL 1989, c. 345, §1, is amended to read:

D. The health maintenance organization is financially responsible, complies with the minimum surplus requirements of section 4204-A, and, among other factors, shall can reasonably be expected to meet its obligations to enrollees and prospective enrollees.

~~(1) The health maintenance organization possesses and maintains minimum surplus as follows:~~

~~(a) As of December 31, 1989,
\$200,000;~~

~~(b) As of December 31, 1990,
\$300,000; and~~

~~(c) As of December 31, 1991,
\$400,000.~~

~~(2) A health maintenance organization which reports incurred, but not reported, claims liability in its financial statements as long-term debt shall establish and maintain a liquid cash reserve represented by assets consisting of cash, prime commercial paper, marketable securities with maturities not exceeding 2 years' duration and certificates of deposit issued by banks and thrift institutions located within the United States and which are fully insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. The value of the cash reserves shall at least equal the health maintenance organization's claims incurred, but not reported, as determined monthly by methods of claims valuation found acceptable by the superintendent. Any nonprofit health maintenance organization employing fund accounts shall maintain restricted assets in a like manner. These funds shall be in addition to and shall not be included as a part of working capital funds required by rule of the Bureau of Insurance.~~

(3) In making the determination whether the health maintenance organization is financially responsible, the superintendent may also consider:

(a) The financial soundness of the health maintenance organization's arrangements for health care services and the schedule of charges used;

(b) The adequacy of working capital;

(c) Any agreement with an insurer, a nonprofit hospital or medical service corporation, a government or any other organization for insuring or providing the payment of the cost of health care services or the provision for automatic applicability of an alternative coverage in the event of discontinuance of the plan;

(d) Any agreement with providers for the provision of health care services that contains a covenant consistent with subsection 6; and

(e) Any arrangements for insurance coverage or an adequate plan for self-

insurance to respond to claims for injuries arising out of the furnishing of health care services.

Sec. 10. 24-A MRSA §4204, sub-§2-A, ¶¶G, H and I are enacted to read:

G. Any director, officer, employee or partner of a health maintenance organization who receives, collects, disburses or invests funds in connection with the activities of that organization shall be responsible for those funds in a fiduciary relationship to the organization.

H. The health maintenance organization shall maintain in force a fidelity bond or fidelity insurance on those employees and officers of the health maintenance organization who have duties as described in paragraph G, in an amount not less than \$250,000 for each health maintenance organization or a maximum of \$5,000,000 in aggregate maintained on behalf of health maintenance organizations owned by a common parent corporation, or such sum as may be prescribed by the superintendent.

I. If any agreement, as set forth in paragraph D, subparagraph (3), division (c), is made by the health maintenance organization, the entity executing the agreement with the health maintenance organization must demonstrate to the superintendent's satisfaction that the entity has sufficient unencumbered surplus funds to cover the assured payments under the agreement, otherwise the superintendent shall disallow the agreement. In considering approval of such an agreement, the superintendent shall consider the entity's record of earnings for the most recent 3 years, the risk characteristics of its investments and whether its investments and other assets are reasonably liquid and available to make payments for health services.

Sec. 11. 24-A MRSA §4204, sub-§3, as enacted by PL 1975, c. 503, is repealed.

Sec. 12. 24-A MRSA §4204, sub-§3-A is enacted to read:

3-A. Investments. The health maintenance organization shall invest funds only in accordance with chapter 13.

Sec. 13. 24-A MRSA §4204, sub-§§4 to 9 are enacted to read:

4. Uncovered expenditures involving deposit. A health maintenance organization shall deposit with the superintendent or, at the discretion of the superintendent, with any organization or trustee acceptable to the superintendent through which a custodial or controlled account is maintained, cash or securities that are acceptable to the superintendent and that at all times are maintained in a fair market value of not less than an

amount equal to the greater of \$100,000 or 120% of the health maintenance organization's liability for uncovered expenditures for enrollees as of the end of the most recent calendar quarter, including but not limited to, liability for incurred but not reported claims. If the health maintenance organization's liability for uncovered expenditures increases more than 10% prior to the end of the calendar quarter, the health maintenance organization must, within 10 days of the determination, deposit an amount sufficient to ensure compliance with this section. In the case of domestic health maintenance organizations, "enrollees" for purposes of this subsection means all enrollees of the organization regardless of residence. In the case of foreign health maintenance organizations, "enrollees" for purposes of this subsection means only those enrollees who are residents of this State.

A. The deposit required by this subsection constitutes an admitted asset of the health maintenance organization for purposes of determination of surplus.

B. A health maintenance organization that has made a deposit may withdraw that deposit or any part thereof after making a substitute deposit of cash or securities of equal amount and value. There may also be withdrawn any part of the deposit in excess of the fair market value of the amount of the required deposit. Deposits, substitutions or withdrawals may be made only with the prior written approval of the superintendent.

C. The deposit required by this subsection must be held in trust and must be used only as provided under this section. The superintendent may use the deposit of an insolvent health maintenance organization for administrative costs associated with administering the deposit and payment of claims of enrollees for uncovered expenditures.

D. The superintendent may by rule or order require a health maintenance organization to file annual, quarterly or more frequent reports of a health maintenance organization's liability for uncovered expenditures. The superintendent may require that the reports include an audit opinion.

E. The superintendent may reduce or eliminate the deposit required by this subsection if the health maintenance organization deposits cash or securities with the Treasurer of State, an insurance supervisory official in the state or jurisdiction of domicile or other official body of that state for the protection of all subscribers and enrollees in a manner substantially similar to that required by this subsection and delivers to the superintendent a certificate to that effect, authenticated by the appropriate state official holding the deposit.

5. Liabilities. Every health maintenance organization shall, when determining liabilities, include an amount estimated in the aggregate to provide for any

unearned premium and for the payment of all claims for health care expenditures that have been incurred, whether reported or unreported, that are unpaid, and for which the organization is or may be liable, and to provide for the expense of adjustment or settlement of those claims.

These liabilities must be computed in accordance with rules promulgated by the superintendent upon reasonable consideration of the ascertained experience and character of the health maintenance organization.

6. Hold harmless. Every contract between a health maintenance organization and a participating provider of health care services must be in writing and must set forth that in the event the health maintenance organization fails to pay for health care services as set forth in the contract, the subscriber or enrollee may not be liable to the provider for any sums owed by the health maintenance organization.

A. If the participating provider contract has not been reduced to writing as required by this subsection or the contract fails to contain the required prohibition, the participating provider may not collect or attempt to collect from the subscriber or enrollee sums owed by the health maintenance organization.

B. No participating provider or agent, trustee or assignee of the participating provider, may maintain any action at law against a subscriber or enrollee to collect sums owed by the health maintenance organization.

7. Continuation of benefits. The superintendent shall require that each health maintenance organization have a plan for handling insolvency that allows for continuation of benefits for the duration of the contract period for which premiums have been paid and continuation of benefits to covered persons who are confined on the date of insolvency in an inpatient facility until those covered persons are discharged or upon expiration of benefits. In considering such a plan, the superintendent may require:

A. Insurance adequate to cover the expenses to be paid for continued benefits after an insolvency;

B. That the provider contract obligate the provider to provide services for the duration of the period after the health maintenance organization's insolvency for which premium payment has been made and until the enrollees' discharge from inpatient facilities;

C. That insolvency reserves be provided and maintained for that period of claims exposure of a health maintenance organization during which a provider's termination of services is pending pursuant to subsection 8; and

D. Any other arrangements to ensure that benefits are continued as specified in this section.

8. Notice of termination. An agreement to provide health care services between a provider and a health maintenance organization must require that, if the provider terminates that agreement, the provider shall give the health maintenance organization not less than 60 days' notice in advance of termination. That agreement must not require more than 90 days' notice after an initial participation period not to exceed 6 months. If the health maintenance organization has a net loss of 5 or more primary care physicians in any county in any 30-day period, the health maintenance organization shall notify the Bureau of Insurance in writing within 10 days of acquiring knowledge of that loss.

9. Denial. A certificate of authority may be denied only after compliance with the requirements of section 4219.

Sec. 14. 24-A MRS §4204-A is enacted to read:

§4204-A. Surplus requirements

1. Initial minimum surplus. To qualify for authority as a health maintenance organization, an organization shall have an initial minimum surplus of \$1,500,000.

2. Surplus maintained. Except as provided in this section, every health maintenance organization must maintain a minimum surplus equal to the greater of:

A. One million dollars;

B. Two percent of annual premium revenues as reported in the annual financial statement covering the health maintenance organization's immediately preceding fiscal year as filed with the superintendent on the first \$150,000,000 of premium and 1% of annual premium on the premium in excess of \$150,000,000;

C. An amount equal to the sum of 3 months uncovered health care expenditures as reported on the financial statement covering the health maintenance organization's immediately preceding fiscal year as filed with the superintendent; or

D. An amount equal to the sum of:

(1) Eight percent of annual health care expenditures except those paid on a capitated basis or managed hospital payment basis as reported on the financial statement covering the health maintenance organization's immediately preceding fiscal year as filed with the superintendent; and

(2) Four percent of annual hospital expenditures paid on a managed hospital payment basis as reported on the financial statement

covering the health maintenance organization's immediately preceding fiscal year as filed with the superintendent.

3. Exceptions. A health maintenance organization licensed before the effective date of this section must maintain a minimum surplus of:

A. Forty percent of the amount required by subsection 2 until December 31, 1991;

B. Sixty percent of the amount required by subsection 2 until December 31, 1992;

C. Eighty percent of the amount required by subsection 2 until December 31, 1993; and

D. One hundred percent of the amount required by subsection 2 until December 31, 1994.

4. Subordinated debt. Any health maintenance organization that issues a subordinated debt instrument shall structure the debt as follows.

A. In determining surplus, debt may not be considered fully subordinated unless the subordination clause is in a form approved by the superintendent. Any interest obligation relating to the repayment of any subordinated debt must be similarly subordinated.

B. Any debt incurred by a note that meets the requirements of this section, and is otherwise acceptable to the superintendent, may not be considered a liability and must be recorded as equity.

Sec. 15. 24-A MRS §4209, as enacted by PL 1975, c. 503, is repealed and the following enacted in its place:

§4209. Information to enrollees

1. Information provided annually. Every health maintenance organization must annually provide to its enrollees:

A. The most recent annual statement of financial condition including a balance sheet and a statement of operations;

B. A description of the organizational structure and operation of the health maintenance organization, including the kind and extent of enrollee participation, and a summary of any material changes since the issuance of the last report;

C. A description of services and information on where and how to secure these services; and

D. A clear and understandable description of the health maintenance organization's method for resolving enrollee complaints.

2. List of providers. The health maintenance organization must provide to its subscribers, upon enrollment and reenrollment, a list of providers.

3. Notice of material change. Every health maintenance organization must provide 30 days' advance notice to its subscribers of any material change in the operation of the organization that will directly affect the subscribers.

4. Notice of termination of primary care provider. An enrollee must be notified in writing by the health maintenance organization of the termination of the primary care provider that provided health care services to that enrollee. The health maintenance organization must provide assistance to the enrollee in transferring to another participating primary care provider.

5. Access to services. The health maintenance organization shall provide to its subscribers information on how services may be obtained, where additional information on access to services is obtained and a toll free telephone number for calls within the service area of the health maintenance organization.

Sec. 16. 24-A MRSA §4214, sub-§4, as enacted by PL 1975, c. 503, is repealed.

Sec. 17. 24-A MRSA §4216, sub-§1, ¶I-1 is enacted to read:

I-1. The health maintenance organization has failed to meet the surplus requirements of section 4204-A; or

Sec. 18. 24-A MRSA §§4231 to 4233 are enacted to read:

§4231. Insolvency; alternative coverage

1. Continuation of coverage by other carriers. In the event of an insolvency of a health maintenance organization and if satisfactory arrangements for the performance of its obligations have not been made as provided for in section 4214, all other carriers that made an offer of coverage to any group contract holder of the insolvent health maintenance organization at the most recent purchase or renewal of coverage, upon order of the superintendent, shall offer the enrollees in the group covered by that contract a 30-day enrollment period that begins on the date of insolvency.

Each carrier shall offer the group's enrollees the same coverage and rates that the carrier had offered to those enrollees at the most recent purchase or renewal of coverage prior to the insolvency, except that a successor health maintenance organization may increase the group's rate to the extent justified by including the new enrollees in a recalculation of rates using the existing method of rate calculation of the successor carrier, as approved by the superintendent.

2. Allocation of enrollees. If no other carrier had offered coverage to a group contract holder in the insolvent health maintenance organization, or if the superintendent determines that the other health benefit plan or plans lack sufficient health care delivery resources to ensure that health care services will be available and reasonably accessible to all of that group's enrollees in the insolvent health maintenance organization, then the superintendent shall allocate equitably the insolvent health maintenance organization's group contracts among all health maintenance organizations that operate within a portion of the insolvent health maintenance organization's service area, taking into consideration the health care delivery resources of each health maintenance organization. Each health maintenance organization to which a group or groups are so allocated shall offer such group or groups the health maintenance organization's existing coverage that is most similar to each group's coverage with the insolvent health maintenance organization at rates determined in accordance with the successor health maintenance organization's existing rating methodology.

3. Nongroup enrollees. The superintendent shall also allocate equitably the insolvent health maintenance organization's nongroup enrollees who are unable to obtain other coverage among all health maintenance organizations that operate within a portion of the insolvent health maintenance organization's service area, taking into consideration the health care delivery resources of each health maintenance organization. Each health maintenance organization to which nongroup enrollees are allocated shall offer those nongroup enrollees the health maintenance organization's existing coverage for individual or conversion coverage as determined by that enrollee's type of coverage in the insolvent health maintenance organization at rates determined in accordance with the successor health maintenance organization's existing rating methodology. Successor health maintenance organizations that do not offer direct nongroup enrollment may aggregate all of the allocated nongroup enrollees into one group for rating and coverage purposes.

§4232. Replacement coverage

1. Group hospital, medical or surgical expenses, or service benefits. Any insurer or nonprofit health insurance plan that issues replacement coverage with respect to group hospital, medical or surgical expenses or service benefits within a period of 60 days from the date of discontinuance of a prior health maintenance organization contract or policy providing the hospital, medical or surgical expenses or service benefits shall immediately cover all enrollees who were validly covered under the previous health maintenance organization contract or policy at the date of discontinuance and who would otherwise be eligible for coverage under the succeeding insurer's or nonprofit health insurance plan's contract, regardless of any provisions in that contract relating to active employment, hospital confinement or pregnancy.

2. Preexisting conditions. No provision in a succeeding insurer's or nonprofit hospital or medical service corporation's contract of replacement coverage may reduce or exclude benefits to enrollees covered under the prior health maintenance organization's contract on the date of discontinuance, on the basis that the condition giving rise to benefits preexisted the effective date of the succeeding contract, except to the extent that benefits for the condition would have been reduced or excluded under the prior contract.

§4233. Registration, regulation and supervision of holding company systems

Every domestic health maintenance organization shall be subject to the requirements of section 222, subsections 2 to 9 and subsections 13 to 18, and shall be deemed to be an insurer for purposes of those provisions of chapter 57, subchapters I and II.

See title page for effective date.

CHAPTER 843

H.P. 1730 - L.D. 2389

An Act to Strengthen Oversight of Medical Malpractice Insurance and Stabilize Premiums

Be it enacted by the People of the State of Maine as follows:

Sec. 1. 24-A MRSA §2304, sub-§4, as enacted by PL 1969, c. 132, §1, is amended to read:

4. -A Except as provided in section 2304-A, a rate filing and its supporting data are confidential until the filing becomes effective.

Sec. 2. 24-A MRSA §2304-A is enacted to read:

§2304-A. Physicians and surgeons liability insurance rates

Physicians and surgeons liability insurance rate filings are first subject to this section, but any other provisions of this chapter not inconsistent with this section also apply. Notwithstanding this section, filings made by advisory organizations are subject to this section only to the extent permitted by law, and laws prohibiting activities or the filing of certain information by advisory organizations supersede the provisions of this section.

1. Contents of filing. Every filing subject to this section must include the data, statistics, schedules or information necessary for the superintendent to determine whether the filing complies with this chapter. The superintendent may waive any noncompliance with this subsection if the superintendent determines that the noncompliance is immaterial. The required information includes, but is not limited to:

A. Rates:

(1) Current rates by rating class at basic limits and larger optional limits of coverage; and

(2) Proposed rates by rating class at basic limits and larger optional limits of coverage;

B. Historical experience:

(1) Maine total limits premium, paid claims, paid allocated loss adjustment expenses, incurred claims, incurred allocated loss adjustment expenses, and incurred loss ratio for not less than the 5 most recent years available;

(2) Maine basic limits written or earned premium or exposure, paid claims, paid allocated loss adjustment expenses, incurred claims, incurred allocated loss adjustment expenses, and incurred loss ratio or pure premium for not less than the 5 most recent years available; and

(3) Any other experience used to support the proposed changes;

C. Adjustment factors:

(1) Premiums or exposure at basic limit adjusted to current rate level or exposure, and a description of the method used to adjust historical earned premium or exposure to current level;

(2) Loss development exhibits showing the change in paid and incurred losses and allocated loss adjustment expenses from period to period, evaluated at least annually, and an explanation of the loss development method used to project the ultimate value of claims and allocated loss adjustment expenses;

(3) Trend factor calculations and application, including the following:

(a) An explanation of the trending procedure and assumptions;

(b) Trend based on experience in this State as well as other actuarially sound sources of trend information; and

(c) Frequency and severity trend factor calculations, shown separately; and

(4) Credibility weighting of alternative sources of data, including a description of the methodology used and the appropriateness of the method to its use in the filing;